

County of Los Alamos

Los Alamos, NM 87544 www.losalamosnm.us

Minutes

County Council – Regular Session

Sara Scott, Council Chair; Randall Ryti, Council Vice-Chair; David Izraelevitz, Antonio Maggiore, Katrina Martin, James Robinson, and Pete Sheehey, Councilors

Tuesday, October 20, 2020

6:00 PM

"Due to COVID-19 concerns, meeting will be conducted remotely.

Public can view proceedings at http://losalamos.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx viz Zoom at https://zoom.us/j/91073144116 or locally on cable channel 8

1. OPENING/ROLL CALL

The Council Chair, Sara Scott, called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.

The following Councilors were in attendance:

Present: 7 - Councilor Scott, Councilor Ryti, Councilor Izraelevitz, Councilor Maggiore, Councilor Martin, Councilor Robinson, and Councilor Sheehey

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by: All.

Council Chair Scott made opening remarks regarding the procedure of the meeting due to COVID-19. Mr. Harry Burgess, County Manager, listed the County employees in attendance.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councilor Scott announced that Council Business Item E.1 was not ready to be presented at this meeting and will be presented at the November 10, 2020 meeting.

A motion was made by Councilor Ryti, seconded by Councilor Sheehey, that the agenda be approved, as amended, excluding item E.1.

The motion passed with the following vote:

Yes: 7 - Councilor Scott, Councilor Ryti, Councilor Izraelevitz, Councilor Maggiore, Councilor Martin, Councilor Robinson, and Councilor Sheehey

5. PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

A. Briefing to Council by Bernadine Goldman, Chair of the Personnel Board

Ms. Bernadine Goldman, Chair of Personnel Board, spoke.

No action taken.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON CONSENT AGENDA

Mr. Sean Williams, 2131 34th Street, commented on Consent Item H.

7. CONSENT AGENDA

A motion was made by Councilor Ryti, seconded by Councilor Maggiore, that Council approve the items on the Consent Agenda as *presented* and that the motions contained in the staff reports be included for the record.

A. Approval of Agreement No. AGR21-07a to Havona Environmental Inc; AGR21-07b to Southwest Hazard Control Inc.; and AGR21-7c to Terracon Consultants Inc. for On-Call Materials Testing and Abatement Services in the Aggregate Amount Not to Exceed \$200,000 excluding Applicable Gross Receipts Tax

I move that Council award Agreement No. AGR21-07a to Havona Environmental Inc; AGR21-07b to Southwest Hazard Control Inc.; and AGR21-7c to Terracon Consultants Inc. for On-Call Materials Testing and Abatement Services in the Aggregate Amount Not to Exceed \$200,000 excluding Applicable Gross Receipts Tax.

B. Approval Amendment No. 3 to Existing General Services, Agreement No. AGR18-704 with Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Mexico, A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association, in an amount not to exceed \$3,800,800.000 for for the initial term plus first, second and third renewal terms, plus applicable gross receipts tax, for the purpose of providing medical insurance benefits to eliqible Los Alamos County employees

I move that Council approve Amendment No. 3 to existing Services Agreement No. AGR18-704, with Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Mexico for Employee Medical Insurance Benefits, in the form attached, and authorize the use of approximately \$600,000.00 in accumulated reserve funding towards expenses covered by the amendment.

C. Approval of County Council Minutes for September 29, 2020 and October 6, 2020

I move that Council approve the County Council Minutes for September 29, 2020 and October 6, 2020.

D. Vacation of Utility Easement Within Lot 3B, a Subdivision of North Community No. 1

I move that Council approve the vacation of easement within Lot 3B, a Subdivision of North Community No. 1.

E. Vacation of Utility Easement Within Lot 198A, a Subdivision of North Community No. 2

I move that Council approve the vacation of utility easement within Lot 198A, a Subdivision of North Community No. 2.

F. Vacation of Utility Easement Within Lot 198B, a Subdivision of North Community No. 2

I move that Council approve the vacation of utility easement within Lot 198B, a Subdivision of North Community No. 2.

G. Board/Commission Appointments - Library Board

I nominate and move that council appoint Kelly Dolejsi for re-appointment to the Library Board and Alee Ali and John Nash for appointment to the Library Board for a term beginning on September 1, 2020 and ending on August 31, 2022.

H. Approval of Revisions to County Council Procedural Rules

I move that the Council approve the amended procedural rules as shown in Attachment A.

Approval of the Consent Agenda:

The motion passed with the following vote:

Yes: 7 - Councilor Scott, Councilor Ryti, Councilor Izraelevitz, Councilor Maggiore, Councilor Martin, Councilor Robinson, and Councilor Sheehey

8. INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE(S)

A. Incorporated County Of Los Alamos Code Ordinance 02-307 An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 30, Article II In Its Entirety, And Replacing It With A Newly Adopted Article II, Chapter 30 Relating To Labor Management Relations, And Authorizing The Continued Existence Of County's Labor Management Relations Board

Councilor Sheehey introduced, without prejudice, Incorporated County of Los Alamos Ordinance No. 02-307; An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 30, Article II In Its Entirety, And Replacing It With A Newly Adopted Article II, Chapter 30, and ask staff to assure that it is published as provided in the County Charter.

B. Incorporated County of Los Alamos Ordinance No. 701: An Ordinance Authorizing the County Manager or Designee to Execute Subleases for the County-Leased Property Located at 1505 15th Street, Los Alamos, New Mexico

Councilor Maggiore introduced, without prejudice, Incorporated County of Los Alamos Ordinance No. 701: An Ordinance Authorizing the County Manager or Designee to Execute Subleases for the County-Leased Property Located at 1505 15th Street, Los Alamos, New Mexico.

9. COUNCIL BUSINESS

A. Appointments

None.

B. Board, Commission, and Committee Liaison Reports

Councilor Sheehey reported on the Rio Grande Water Fund.

Councilor Izraelevitz reported on the Regional Coalition of LANL Communities.

Councilor Scott reported on the land use sub-committee.

Councilor Robinson reported on the North Mesa Housing feasibility study.

Councilor Ryti reported on the findings of the Los Alamos Fire Department accreditation; a Technical Work Group meeting; the Board of Public Utilities; Los Alamos Downtown Design workshop; the Los Alamos Community Alliance; and the National Security Alliance (NSA) Public Information Meeting.

C. County Manager's Report

1) County Manager's Report for October 2020

County Manager Harry Burgess reported on COVID-19 updates; submissions for Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding; the annual employee appreciation event; Rendija and Los Alamos Canyon updates; and the Carbon Free Power Project (CFPP).

D. Council Chair Report

Chair Scott reported on the Mayor's Council call; and a discussion with Governor Martinez from San Ildefonso Pueblo regarding the Vigil Pipeline and the State Road 4 project; a meeting with Pamela Mann from National Association of Counties regarding US News Healthiest Communities ranking; the County Public Schools Coordination Meeting; and the upcoming joint meeting with Los Alamos Public Schools.

E. General Council Business

1) Approval of Council's Review Committee Report and Recommendations on FY21 Boards and Commissions Work Plans

Item pulled from the agenda.

2) Discussion of Unsolicited Community Grant Requests

Councilors had a discussion on these items.

No action taken.

F. Approval of Councilor Expenses

None.

G. Preview of Upcoming Agenda Items

Councilor Scott highlighted the following upcoming items; November 17 meeting update on lab operations; an update regarding the Community Development Advisory Board; and a discussion regarding family resources and intervention services provided by the County.

Councilor Robinson asked for an item regarding communication strategy and infrastructure update be added to an upcoming agenda.

Councilor Sheehey asked for an item regarding a campaign finance regulation be added to an upcoming agenda.

Councilor Ryti asked for the following items to be added to an upcoming agenda; economic development and the health commons.

10. COUNCILOR COMMENTS

None.

11. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Aaron Walker, 413 Pruitt, commented on radioactive items being referred to as buried treasure and the Trinity Properties.

Councilor Scott made a statement regarding COVID safe practices (CSP).

12. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m.

INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS

Sara C. Scott, Council Chair

Attest:

Naomi D. Maestas, County Clerk

Meeting Transcribed By: Victoria L. Martinez, Senior Deputy Clerk

LOS ALAMOS COUNTY COUNCIL PROCEDURAL RULES

October 20, 2020 UPDATE

PREAMBLE

The Council of the Incorporated County of Los Alamos is the governing body of Los Alamos County and was created by the Los Alamos County Charter. The Charter is relatively undemanding with respect to Council procedure, format, and operating methods, so the Council is, to a large extent, self-regulating. The following rules, therefore, are adopted as a set of operating procedures to which the Council voluntarily binds itself, except as otherwise provided herein. The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order apply only where Council rules are silent. If any of these rules are found to conflict with the Los Alamos County Charter, the Charter shall take precedence.

ETHICS

The Council adopts, by reference, the provisions of the Governmental Conduct Act, NMSA 1978 § 10-16-1 et seq. as well as Sections 30-1 thru 30-30 of the Code of Ordinances of the Incorporated County of Los Alamos, which is commonly referred to as the Code of Conduct, in their entirety and affirmatively supports Council's and individual Councilor's adherence to their provisions.

OFFICERS AND MEMBERS

<u>Election</u>. The Council shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from among its members at its first regular meeting after January 1 of each year. The Chair and Vice-Chair will serve at the pleasure of the Council and be eligible for election to subsequent terms.

Chair. The Chair shall preside at Council meetings and shall:

- Keep Councilors informed of events, meetings or other occasions where the Chair acted
 or will act as the official spokesperson for the Council. The Chair acknowledges that he or
 she does not have additional authorities above and beyond those identified in this document
 or the Charter. The Chair is not authorized to commit actions of the County or the Council
 without a full Council vote.
- Ensure that all other Councilors are informed, within a reasonable time, of significant communications directed to the Chair, in the Chair's official capacity representing the Council.
- When the Chair and Vice-Chair are on travel or otherwise unable to perform their duties, appoint a Councilor to serve as Chair.
- The Chair serves an important administrative function by overseeing the agendas for County Council Meetings and running Council Meetings. The Chair will manage the agendas for County Council Meetings with fair and equitable treatment of the agenda requests from all other Councilors. Every Councilor has the right to place items on Council Meeting agendas and expect that they will be assigned to a meeting within a reasonable time frame. If the

Chair is uncertain about the appropriate timing for placement of specific agenda items, he or she is to raise the issue in a timely manner with the Councilor who requested the item.

- The Chair will present the annual state of county message no later than before the end of the Chair's term.
- The Chair is responsible for applying the rules of parliamentary procedure during meetings.
 The Chair should be well versed in those rules, because the Chair, for all intents and purposes, makes the final ruling on the rules.
- All decisions by the Chair are final unless overruled by the majority of Council by a point
 of Order. The Chair has discretion, subject to override by Council, to deviate from the letter
 of these rules. The Chair may make or second motions and participate in discussion as
 any other Councilor. However, as a matter of decorum, the Chair should normally defer to
 another Councilor to make the motion.

<u>Vice-Chair</u>. The Vice-Chair shall assist the Chair in the performance of the duties of the Chair, and act in the Chair's place when the Chair is unable to perform the duties of the Chair.

<u>Council Members</u>. Councilors, including the Chair and Vice-Chair, have equal powers and duties except as otherwise specified in the Charter and these rules. In addition to their duties specified in the County Charter or Code or in other County ordinances, Councilors shall:

- Stay informed of County policies.
- In all communications regarding County business, Councilors should make clear, including
 in their role as Board Liaisons, that they speak for themselves, unless authorized by the
 Council to speak for the Council as a whole, or unless stating Council action in adopted
 Ordinances, Rules, Policies or other official Council action, such as action taken in an
 adopted motion at a Council meeting.
- When delegated by Council, represent the official policies or positions of the County Council
 to the best of their ability and report to Council in a timely manner on meetings or key
 discussions, actions, or intentions of the Board to which the Councilor is a delegate in order
 for Council to determine whether to take further action.
- Councilors should participate on standing and ad hoc committees as requested except upon showing of good cause.
- After each legislative activity, a report shall be provided to the rest of the Council with an
 update of all relevant information obtained from that activity.
- Serve as Council liaison to assigned advisory boards or commissions. Council liaison assignments to each of the boards or commissions will be made periodically by the Chair and the assigned Councilor will serve as the primary information liaison between the board or commission and Council, providing guidance and advice about the board or commission issues to bring to the attention of the Council for action or for information. The Councilor will, after consultation with the Chair of the board or commission attend regular meetings of the board or commission to participate in the board or commission as agreed and should meet periodically with the chair of the board or commission to determine the level of participation desired by the board or commission and issues in which the Council should be advised.

- Maintain the confidentiality of applicable County records and other information, as specifically required by law, policies, rules and regulations.
- Recognize the importance of County business being open to public scrutiny and that the business of the Council is generally public as required by law. However, the law also allows closed meetings when the public conduct of governmental business could put the public's interest at risk by jeopardizing sensitive negotiations or chilling the necessarily frank discussion needed to reach certain decisions. The Statutes provide carefully defined instances in which Council may conduct its business in closed session. In order to protect the information provided during closed sessions and to facilitate the collegiality in which the Council must function to do the best job it can for the public, individual councilors are expected to respect the confidential nature of information and discussions that are properly deemed confidential under the law.
- Evaluate the performance of the County Manager and the County Attorney according to the schedule and template adopted as shown in Attachment A.
- Hire the County Manager and County Attorney according to the process outlined in Attachment B.
- Provide input to the hiring of the Department of Public Utilities Manager as conducted by the Board of Public Utilities. Appointment shall only occur with formal approval of the Council in accordance with the County Code.
- Councilors will respond to emails, phone calls, and texts from other councilors within a reasonable time frame; ideally within 3 days.
- If requested, councilors will meet with any other Councilor, as appropriate under the Open Meetings Act, within a reasonable time frame; ideally within a week.
- Each Councilor shall submit at least annually, no later than January 15 of each year, a completed Disclosure of Outside Employment, Membership and Financial Interest form. Councilors shall also submit updated forms to include any changes that occur before the annual submission to ensure full and accurate disclosure. Councilor disclosure statements and any updates shall be kept on file in the County's Human Resources Department and shall be posted on the County's Sunshine web page. Each year, the Human Resources Department will remind Councilors to fill out these forms in a timely manner.
- The New Mexico Inspection of Public Records Act (Act), NMSA 1978, Sections 14-2-1, et seq., requires governmental agencies to make their records available to the public, with limited statutory exceptions. Councilors shall respond to the Records Custodian according to the timeline and instructions accompanying the request. Councilors shall immediately notify the Custodian if circumstances exist that could prevent timely compliance with the instructions or request.

COUNCILOR EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS

Councilors shall use a Los Alamos County provided email account for all Council business. If a Councilor receives any email communications regarding Council business in a non-County email account, the Councilor shall forward such email communications to his/her County email account and only respond to, reply or forward such email communications from his/her County email account.

COUNCIL MEETINGS

<u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of Council will be set under the requirements of the annual Opening Meetings Resolution adopted by Council.

Work Sessions. The Council may schedule work sessions on a regular basis under the requirements of the annual Open Meetings Resolution. Council meetings designated as work sessions shall be held for the primary purpose of discussing issues at length with staff in an informal setting without taking formal action except for required procedural actions such as approving minutes from a prior council meeting, or adopting a statement for inclusion in the minutes regarding a closed session. Public comment will generally be taken only at the beginning and ending.

<u>Closed Meetings</u>. The Chair may call a closed session to discuss issues (such as pending litigation, personnel matters, collective bargaining strategy) pursuant to NMSA 1978, 10-15-1 (H)(2,5 etc.). Following the closed session, the Chair will call for a motion that is substantially similar to the following:

"I move that Council approve the following statement for inclusion in the minutes: 'The matters discussed in the closed session held on (MONTH)(DAY)(YEAR) that began at (TIME) were limited only to those topics specified in the (NOTICE)(MOTION) of the closed session, and no action was taken on any matter in that closed session."

This motion is a procedural motion, therefore only a show of hands is required rather than a roll call vote.

Special Meetings. The Chair, may call a special meeting, or the Council at an open meeting may set a special meeting for the purpose of conducting County business. Notice of a special meeting will follow the requirements of the annual Open Meetings Resolution.

<u>Emergency Meetings</u>. The Chair may call an emergency meeting in accordance with the annual Open Meetings Resolution.

<u>Meeting Agendas</u>. The Chair and Vice-Chair will, in consultation with the County Manager, develop the Council meeting agenda. The Chair will schedule another Councilor to participate in each agenda development meeting. A list of proposed agenda items will be provided to Council at each Council meeting and may be reviewed during Council Business at a Council meeting.

Any Councilor may request to have an item placed on a future Council meeting agenda. The item will be placed on the agenda as soon as practicable.

The agenda for any regular meeting may include a consent calendar. The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite Council consideration and approval of routine, ordinary, or other items that do not require discussion and for which a public hearing is not required by law. Any item on the consent calendar that a Councilor asks to be considered separately will be pulled from the consent calendar for separate consideration Consent calendar items that have been pulled shall be considered in the Business section of the agenda, or tabled by motion. The public will be offered an opportunity to make comment on the items on the consent calendar right after the public comment section at the beginning of the meeting.

<u>Citizen Petitions</u>. When a subject appears on an agenda as a result of a properly presented citizen petition, the Council may:

 Acknowledge receipt of the petition and take no further action; or ATTACHMENT A

- Acknowledge receipt of the petition and take the requested action or a different action addressing the subject; or
- Refer the matter to an appropriate Board or Commission or Council Subcommittee; or
- Decide to investigate the subject and discuss further, in which case a future date may be set for the presentation of additional information, Council discussion and possible action.

VACANCIES

<u>Elected Officials</u>. Should a vacancy arise in the office of an elected official, Council shall appoint a successor in accordance with appropriate New Mexico statutes. Council will utilize the procedure specified in Attachment C for selecting among candidates to fill the vacancy.

<u>Utility Board Members</u>. Pursuant to § 501 of the Charter, Council selects members of the Board of Public Utilities. New members shall be appointed according to the procedure specified in Attachment D.

BASIC FORMAT FOR AN AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION

Council meetings have a written, published agenda. Each agenda item can be handled by the Chair in the following basic format.

First, the Chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and clearly state what the subject is.

*Should the item be one which could generate a concern about the Code of Conduct or a real or perceived conflict of interest, the affected Councilor should make inquiry about the existence of a conflict at this point.

Second, the Chair should invite the appropriate individuals or parties to report on the item.

Third, the Chair should ask Councilors if they have any technical questions for clarification. At this point, Councilors may ask clarifying questions to the parties or individuals who reported on the item, and they should be given time to respond.

Fourth, the Chair should invite public comments. If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to the subject, the Chair may limit the time of each public speaker. At the conclusion of the public comments, the Chair should announce that the public input has concluded. For quasi-judicial proceedings, the Chair will be provided with detailed instructions designed solely for the conduct of that type of meeting.

Fifth, the Chair should invite a motion from a member of Council. The Chair should announce the name of the Councilor who makes the motion.

Sixth, the Chair should determine if any Councilor wishes to second the motion. The Chair should announce the name of the Councilor who seconds the motion. It is compulsory practice for a motion to require a second before proceeding with it, to ensure that it is not just one Councilor who is interested in a particular approach.

Seventh, the Chair shall ensure the motion is clearly understood before the discussion or vote. This can be done in one of three ways:

The Chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it; or

The Chair can repeat the motion; or

The Chair can ask the clerk to repeat the motion.

Eighth, the Chair shall invite discussion of the motion by the members of Council. If there has been no discussion or a very brief discussion, the Chair will announce that a vote will proceed immediately, and there is no need to repeat the motion. If there has been substantial discussion, it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the motion by repeating it.

If a substitute motion or a motion to amend changes the motion before Council, the Chair may, in his or her discretion, reopen the floor to public comment on the substituted or amended motion.

If the issue is one that is likely to engender a great deal of Councilor comment, the Chair may limit each Councilor's comments to an agreed-upon number of minutes. As a matter of courtesy and fairness, Councilors are expected to terminate their comments immediately after being advised that their time has expired.

Ninth, the Chair takes a vote by asking the clerk to call the roll of Councilors present. A majority of at least four Councilors determines whether the motion passes or is defeated.

Tenth, the Chair should announce the result of the vote and should announce what action (if any) the Council has taken. In announcing the result, the Chair should indicate the names of the Councilors, if any, who voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement may take the following form: "The motion passes by a vote of 4-2, with Councilors Smith and Jones dissenting. We have passed a motion requiring 10 days' notice for all future meetings of the Los Alamos County Council."

MOTIONS IN GENERAL

Motions are vehicles for decision-making. It is usually best to have a motion before the Council prior to starting discussions. A motion helps focus the discussion.

As noted, the Chair has every right as a member of Council to make a motion, but normally should do so only if he or she wishes a motion be made but no other Councilor seems willing to do so.

THE THREE COMMON MOTIONS

Three motions are the most common:

- The main motion. The main motion is the one that puts forward a decision for consideration. A main motion might be: "I move that Council create a five-member committee to plan and put on an annual fundraiser."
- The motion to amend. A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but to modify it in some way. A vote on a motion to amend should occur before the vote on the main motion. If the motion to amend passes then the vote should be taken on the main motion as amended. If the motion to amend does not pass, then the un-amended main motion as originally stated remains before Council. If a Councilor wants to change the main motion that is under discussion, he or she should move to amend it. A motion to amend might be: "I move that we amend the motion to have a 10-member committee."

In regard to "friendly amendments" Robert's Rules of Order provides:

The term "friendly amendment" is often used to describe an amendment offered by someone who is in sympathy with the purposes of the main motion, in the belief that the amendment will either improve the statement or effect of the main motion, presumably to the satisfaction of its maker, or will increase the chances of the main motion's adoption. Regardless, of whether or not the maker of the motion "accepts" the amendment, it must be opened to [Council] debate and voted on formally...and is handled under the same rules as amendments generally.

In short, a "friendly amendment" is nothing more than a motion to amend proposed by ally of the main motion that is before Council. As such, the procedure for the adoption of a "friendly amendment" is the same for a motion to amend.

• The substitute motion. A substitute motion seeks to throw out the basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion for it. A vote on a motion to substitute should occur before the vote on the main motion. If the motion to substitute passes then, and only then, should a vote be taken on the substance of the substitute motion. If the motion to substitute does not pass, then the main motion as originally stated remains before Council. If a Councilor wants to completely do away with the main motion under discussion and put a new motion before Council, he or she would make a substitute motion. A substitute motion might be: "I move to substitute the main motion before Council with a motion to cancel the annual fundraiser this year."

Motions to amend and substitute motions essentially serve the same purpose which is to change the main motion that is before the Council. A majority vote of the Council is required to change the main motion that is before the Council regardless of whether the motion is to amend or substitute. As these motions are procedural motions, a roll call vote of the entire Council is not required for their passage.

TO DEBATE OR NOT DEBATE

The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to debate and discussion. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to suspend the rules, motions to amend, and substitute motions are all eligible, each in their turn, for full discussion before and by the Council. The debate can continue as long as Councilors wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the Chair that it is time to move on and take action.

There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a desire of the Council to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that is, when the following motions are made and seconded, the Chair must immediately call for a vote of the Council without debate on the motion):

- A motion to adjourn. The Chair may announce the adjournment of a meeting unless a Councilor objects, in which case a motion to adjourn must be passed before the meeting is adjourned. Once passed, this motion requires the Council to immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled meeting.
- A motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the Council to immediately take a recess. Normally, the Chair determines and states the time or date at which the meeting will reconvene.

- A motion to fix the time to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to adjourn
 the meeting at the specific time set in the motion. For example, the motion might be: "I
 move we adjourn the meeting at midnight."
- A motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the agenda item to be
 halted and the agenda item to be placed on hold. The motion may contain a specific time in
 which the item can come back to Council. Or the motion may contain no specific time for
 the return of the item, in which case a motion to take the item off the table and bring it back
 to Council will have to be taken at a future meeting.
- A motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to say: "I move the previous question" or "I call for the question." When a Councilor makes such a motion, the Councilor is really saying: "I've had enough debate. Let's get on with the vote." When such a motion is made, the Chair should ask for a second to the motion, stop debate, and vote on the motion to limit debate. Note that a motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For example: "I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes." A similar motion is a motion to object to consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, precludes the Council from even considering an item on the agenda.
- A motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of the Council, such as the Chair and Vice-Chair, nominations are in order from the floor of the Council. A motion to close nominations effectively cuts off the right of Councilors to nominate others for consideration.
- A motion to suspend the rules. This motion suspends a particular adopted procedural rule, or, if the parliamentary procedural rule is not specifically addressed in the adopted procedural rules, then the motion can be deployed to suspend a particular rule from Robert's Rules of Order. This motion should be deployed sparingly in the rare circumstance when the aforementioned rules of parliamentary procedure unduly burden the substantive work at hand. Robert's Rules of Order provides that this motion requires a TWO-THIRDS majority; the motion is neither debatable nor subject to a motion to reconsider.

THE MOTION TO RECONSIDER

A tenet of parliamentary procedure is bringing finality to an agenda item. After vigorous discussion, debate and vote, there must be closure to an agenda item. So, after a vote is taken, the agenda item is deemed closed. The agenda item can only be reconsidered if a proper motion for consideration is made and approved.

In regard to the timing of a motion for reconsideration, the motion can only be made at either the meeting where the agenda item was first voted upon, or at the next regular meeting after the agenda item was voted upon, otherwise the motion for reconsideration is untimely. However, if a Councilor wishes to revisit an agenda item from a past meeting where a motion for reconsideration would be untimely, a motion to suspend the rule regarding the timeliness of a motion for reconsideration can be made. If the motion to suspend the timeliness rule is approved by a two-thirds majority of Council, the Council can then proceed with a motion to reconsider a previous agenda item.

In applying this rule on timeliness, it is crucial to maintain the distinction between a particular agenda item, and the subject matter of a particular agenda item. A motion for reconsideration only applies to a particular agenda item, and not the subject matter of the agenda item. For example, if the Council approves Ordinance A that soon proves in need of revision or repeal, Council is free to bring forth Ordinance B repealing or modifying Ordinance A without the need

for a motion for reconsideration. Ordinance B addresses the same subject matter as Ordinance A but is a new agenda item. As such, a motion for reconsideration should be viewed merely as a tool to reconsider a recently voted upon particular agenda item.

In regard to who may make a motion for reconsideration, only a councilor who voted in the prevailing faction on the previously addressed agenda item may make a motion to reconsider the past particular agenda item. A corollary of this rule is that only a councilor who voted in the prevailing faction on the previously addressed agenda item may make a motion to suspend the rules so Council can entertain an otherwise untimely motion to reconsider a previously voted upon particular agenda item.

Once an appropriate motion for reconsideration is made and approved by a majority vote of Council, the previously addressed agenda item may be discussed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time.

Certain motions are not subject to a motion for reconsideration. Typical motions not subject to a motion for reconsideration include, but are not limited to, motions to adjourn, to suspend the rules, to close nominations, for a point of order, to take from the table, to take up a question out of its proper order, to recess, and, of course, a motion for reconsideration is not subject to a motion for reconsideration.

COURTESY AND DECORUM

The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where members of the Council and members of the public can attend to business efficiently, fairly, and with full participation. And at the same time, it is up to the Chair and the Council to maintain common courtesy and decorum. Only one person can have the floor at a time; each speaker shall be first recognized by the Chair before speaking.

The Chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an agenda item focus on the item and the policy in question, not the personalities of the Councilors, staff or the public. Debate on policy is healthy; debate on personalities is not. The Chair has the right to cut off discussion that is too personal, too loud, too unprofessional or too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the interest of time, the Chair may, however, limit the time allotted to speakers. Can Councilors interrupt a speaker? The general rule is no. There are, however, exceptions. A speaker may be interrupted for the following reasons:

- **Privilege.** The proper interruption would be: "Point of Privilege." The Chair would then ask the interrupter to "state your point." Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would interfere with the normal comfort of the meeting. For example, the room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere with a person's ability to hear.
- Order. The proper interruption would be "Point of Order." Again, the Chair would ask the interrupter to "state your point." Appropriate points of order relate to anything that would not be considered appropriate conduct of the meeting; for example, if the Chair moved on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that discussion or debate.
- Appeal. If the Chair makes a ruling that a Councilor disagrees with, the Councilor may
 appeal the ruling of the Chair by motion. If the motion is seconded and after debate, it
 passes by a majority vote, then the ruling of the Chair is reversed.
- Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of saying, "Let's return to the agenda." If a Councilor believes the Council has drifted from the agreed upon agenda,

such a call may be made. It does not require a vote, and when the Chair discovers the agenda has not been followed, the Chair simply reminds the Council to return to the agenda item before them. If the Chair fails to do so, the Chair's determination may be appealed by motion.

• Withdraw a motion. During debate and discussion of a motion, the maker of the motion on the floor, at any time, may interrupt a speaker to withdraw his or her motion from the floor. The motion is immediately deemed withdrawn, although the Chair may ask the person who seconded the motion if he or she wishes to make the same motion, or any other Councilor may make the motion if properly recognized.

SPECIAL NOTES ABOUT PUBLIC INPUT

The rules outlined here help make meetings very public friendly. But in addition, and particularly for the Chair, it is wise to remember three special rules that apply to each agenda item:

Rule One: Tell the public what the Council will be doing.

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the Council is doing their work.

Rule Three: When the Council has acted, tell the public exactly what the Council did.

Public input is essential to a healthy democracy, and community participation is an important element of that input. The challenge for anyone chairing a public meeting is to accommodate public input in a timely and time-sensitive way, while maintaining steady progress through the agenda items. The rules presented here for conducting a Council meeting are offered as tools for effective leadership and as a means of developing sound policy.

COUNCIL COMMITTEES

Council Standing Committees.

- Existing and new standing committees. Council may create a standing committee of its members at any time it determines that continuing advice or interaction is needed on a subject or range of subjects on an ongoing basis or that it needs representation of its adopted positions on County matters. A standing committee's term will continue indefinitely unless its term is changed by Council vote. The committee shall report periodically to Council on its advice and activities. A current list of the Council's standing committees is maintained by the County Manager.
- Membership. Appointments to standing committees will be made annually on a rotational basis, as described below, unless Council determines that there is good reason to select and appoint members on an alternative basis. Standing committees shall be comprised of no more than three Councilors. The committee may request that staff be assigned to assist the committee and may request the assistance of members of the community or other advisors or experts in supplying information or to act as a resource to the committee.
- Councilor responsibilities. Councilors appointed to standing committees shall make reasonable efforts to attend meetings of the standing committee and if the Councilor is unable to attend meetings on a regular basis, the Councilor shall notify the Council Chair and request another Councilor be appointed as a replacement or state good reasons for the Councilor's absence. It is the responsibility of each Councilor to assure that the

ATTACHMENT A

standing committee addresses and provides advice to Council on the issues assigned to the committee. Councilors other than the committee members may not attend committee meetings unless the non-member Councilor gives sufficient prior notice to the chair of the committee for compliance with the Open Meetings Act, if applicable.

Council Ad hoc Committees.

- Establishment and expiration of ad hoc committees. Council may establish an ad hoc council committee of no more than three Councilors at any time Council finds that there is a need for "one-time" advice to the Council to carry out a specified task. Ad hoc committees shall be created and Councilors shall be appointed by motion and vote of Council. At the time an ad hoc committee is created, the advice requested by the committee and the expected time of completion of its objective shall be clearly stated by Council. The committee may request that staff be assigned to assist the committee and may request the assistance of members of the community or other advisors or experts in supplying information or to act as a resource to the committee.
- **Councilor responsibilities.** Councilors appointed to ad hoc committees shall have the same responsibilities as Councilors appointed to a standing committee.

COUNCILOR EXPENSES

Expense reimbursement. A Councilor shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred for work and travel on County business and for participation with organizations or associations of which the County is a member, including special work assignments, under the following conditions:

- The travel participation in meetings or other work assignment has been approved by the Council in advance, or if advance approval was not possible, with permission of the Chair, followed by Council approval at the earliest possible time after the expense was incurred.
- The reimbursement for expenses complies with all applicable law, rules and regulations and policies.
- The Chair (or Vice-Chair for the Chair's expenses) acknowledges the application for reimbursement of Councilor expenses.
- Councilors are expected to respect budget limitations and will limit overall expenditures
 of public money to the extent practical.

Expense approval. Reimbursement for Councilor expenses not exceeding \$250.00 in a calendar month made in accordance with these rules do not need specific Council action. The Council must approve reimbursement of Councilor expenses exceeding \$250.00 in any calendar month.

ADOPTED this 20th day of October, 2020.

COUNCIL OF THE INCORPORATED COUNTY OF LOS ALAMOS

Sara C. Scott Council Chair

ATTACHMENT A

Attachment A

County Manager and County Attorney Performance Appraisal Process

Due Date*	Action	Comments
	Performance Period Apri	l 1-March 31
Mid May	Employee self-assessment due to County Council, to include:	Employee to use Contract Employee Performance Self-Evaluation Form. Identify 4-6 performance objectives for the County Manager from areas such as: Operational (1) Fiscal (1) Communication (1) Strategic (2-3)
		Identify 4-6 performance objectives for the County Attorney from areas such as: Office operations (1) Legal support (Council, Boards and Commission Members) (1) Reduction of legal vulnerability (1) Professional conduct (2-3)
End of May	Council closed session meeting with employee to discuss: • Performance • Future performance objectives • Career development goals	Each employee meeting anticipated to last ~45 minutes.
End of May	Council closed session to determine: • Final performance overall evaluation rating • Proposed salary adjustment • Support needed for achieving career development goals	Final performance evaluation will include written feedback for each of the performance objectives and overall rating using the Countywide rating system of unsatisfactory, development needed, meets, exceeds, or far exceeds for each performance objective and overall rating.
	Each Councilor will provide written feedback for each performance objective using the Contract Employee Performance Council Evaluation Form; this feedback will be integrated by the Council Chair to prepare the written feedback for each performance objective. (The individual evaluation forms will be attached to the final integrated feedback.)	Performance rating and salary increase range (merit + CPI) for County-wide personnel will be used as parameters for salary adjustment in accordance with the applicable employment contract and other considerations as deemed necessary and agreed to by Council.
Mid June 15	Council closed session to provide final performance evaluation to employee	Each employee meeting anticipated to last ~ 15 minutes.

		Final integrated Council evaluation sent to HR with overall score along with the salary adjustment allocated as agreed to in an open meeting vote by Council.
Mid December	Interim performance discussion between Council and employee	Each employee discussion anticipated to last ~45 minutes. Significant comments will be documented and provided to the employee and available for the May year-end performance review as required and/or appropriate.

^{*}It is understood that modifications to the timeline and process may need to be made based on competing County and/or Councilor commitments and County Calendar

County Manager and County Attorney Performance

Self-Evaluation Form

Name and Date:
Position:
Performance Objective #1:
Performance Objective #2:
Performance Objective #3:
Performance Objective #4:
Performance Objective #5:
Performance Objective #6:
Proposed Future Performance Objectives:
Proposed Career Development Goals:
Overall Assessment:
County Manager and County Attorney Performance Council Evaluation Form
Councilor Name, and Date:
Employee Name and Position:
Performance Objective #1:
Performance Objective #2:
Performance Objective #2: Performance Objective #3:
Performance Objective #3:
Performance Objective #3: Performance Objective #4:
Performance Objective #3: Performance Objective #4: Performance Objective #5:
Performance Objective #3: Performance Objective #4: Performance Objective #5: Performance Objective #6:

Attachment B

Hiring Process for Los Alamos County Manager and County Attorney

- 1. The first step in the hiring process is development of a search committee comprised of up to three County Councilors, one of which to be the Chair and the other two to be appointed by the Chair, and possibly the outgoing incumbent. The search committee responsibilities include clarification of the job requirements, timeline, development of needed recruiting materials and development of job advertisements as well as communicating key elements to County Staff, Council, and the community as appropriate. The search committee will be led by the Human Resources Division.
- 2. The hiring process will include both local and national recruitment efforts for the position.
- 3. Once the job advertisement has been closed and the applications qualified by the Human Resources Division, the search committee will screen the applicants. If a downselect of the applicants is required, this will be performed by the search committee and noticed as a closed session as proscribed by the Open Meetings Act.
- 4. The candidate interview process will include mechanisms for obtaining input from including the County Manager's Office, the Department of Public Utilities, County Attorney's Office, County Council, Board of Public Utilities, County staff and the community. It will provide opportunities to evaluate leadership and management skills, communication skills (both within the County and with the public), fiscal management skills, and specific technical skills as applicable to the position.
- 5. The final selection of the Employee will be made by County Council. Final negotiations to conclude a contract with the employee will be led by the Human Resources Division working with the appropriate legal department representative and Council Chair. The final contract will be approved by full Council during a public meeting as proscribed by the Open Meetings Act.

Attachment C

Los Alamos County Council Appointment Process for

Selection of Elected Officials

- 6. When there is a vacancy in the office of an elected official, the County Council will solicit letters of interest and applications from the public.
- 7. When the recruiting process is complete, the County Council will appoint a committee to develop a set of interview questions specific to the elected office and that appropriately demonstrates the applicants' skills, knowledge and interest in the position; they may also address issues relevant to the Community. The draft set of interview questions will be reviewed, discussed and agreed on by Council in the public meeting prior to initiating the interview process.
- 8. The County Council will then schedule a public interview and decision process at an upcoming council meeting.
- 9. At the appointed Council meeting, the applicants will attend and present their application to the Council using the following process:
 - -- Each applicant will make a three minute statement to share their interest and qualifications for the office.
 - -- Applicants will then answer interview questions from the County Council. Each applicant will answer each question. Questions will be prepared in advance. Follow up questions are allowed if further clarification is needed.
 - -- There will be an opportunity for public comment after applicants have made their statements and answered questions. Public comment is limited to three minutes per citizen.
 - -- After public comment, the Council will take a roll call vote.
 - -- The applicant with the most votes will be appointed to fill the vacancy.
 - -- In order to be selected, an applicant must receive a minimum of 4 votes. If no applicant receives 4 votes after the first roll call vote, the applicant with the fewest votes will be eliminated and the Council will take additional roll call votes until a final selection is made.

Attachment D

Los Alamos County Council Appointment Process for

Selection of Board of Public Utilities Member

- 1. When there is a vacancy on the Board of Public Utilities (BPU), the County Council will solicit letters of interest and applications from the public.
- 2. When the recruiting process is complete, the County Council will appoint a preliminary interview committee to screen the applicants. Members of the preliminary interview committee will consist of two County Councilors, one of which shall be the Councilor liaison to the BPU, and the second appointed by the Council Chair, one BPU member, and the DPU Manager. The preliminary interview committee is to develop a set of interview questions specific to this board position and that appropriately demonstrates the applicants' skills, knowledge and interest in the position.
- 3. After the preliminary interview committee conducts the interviews of all applicants, the committee will provide the results of the preliminary interviews to the County Council in writing..
- 4. The County Council will then schedule a public interview and decision process at an upcoming council meeting.
- 5. At the appointed Council meeting, the applicants will attend and present their application to the Council using the following process:
 - -- Each applicant will make a three minute statement to share their interest and qualifications for the position.
 - -- Applicants will then answer questions from the County Council. Each applicant will answer each question. Questions will be prepared in advance. Follow up questions are allowed if further clarification is needed.
 - -- There will be an opportunity for public comment after applicants have made their statements and answered questions.
 - -- After public comment, the Council will take a roll call vote.
 - -- The applicant with the most votes will be appointed to the Board of Public Utilities.
 - -- In order to be selected, an applicant must receive a minimum of 4 votes. If no applicant receives 4 votes after the first roll call vote, the applicant with the fewest votes will be eliminated and the Council will take additional roll call votes until a final selection is made.